Kansas Elevator Safety Advisory Board
Meeting minutes
October 21, 2024
Call to order:
Mark Engholm called meeting to order at 10:00am

Present:
In person: Cole Haston, Senator Mike Petersen, Jarrod Mann, Julie Garcia, Mark Wendland, Brent Snyder, Spencer Duncan, Mark Engholm, Jacob Poteete, Todd Stanton-online, Representative Sean Tarwater

Absent:  None

Guests:
Brenda McNorton, Bill VanAusdall, Jared Smith, Jessica Dunderdale, Christina Lambotte

Old business

1.	Approval of the 8th meeting minutes-motion by Mark Engholm seconded by Brent Snyder

Agenda items discussed by Mark Engholm and staff.

1. Mark presented the proposed DRAFT of the KS Elevator Advisory Board Handbook.  He stated that this DRAFT is the 5th iteration of the handbook. Mark also stated that the purpose of the handbook is to provide guidance in the event that anyone from the public sector has questions regarding the elevator program. Mark stated the handbook is a policy manual and does not require approval. He also said that the handbook is ready for use and if the board feels the need to modify it in the future, they will be able to do so.

2. Mark Engholm stated to make sure Spencer Duncan is listed as present for the meeting.

3. Jessica Dunderdale presented a revised graphic containing the elevator numbers.  The new graphic indicated how many applications were actually received each month.  This was a change from the previous graphic that showed the total number of cumulative applications for each month, which was not relevant information at this time. Jessica reminded the board that in 2025 and 2026, the chart will have renewals of contractors, mechanics and inspectors.  There was discussion about the numbers being broken out to reflect that when renewals are completed.

4. It was asked how many units actually will be registered; Mark Engholm stated he was told the estimate in the state of Kansas is about 10,000 elevators. He also said that does not count Sedgwick County because they inspect their own. Mark asked Jessica and Bill to reach out to Sedgwick County to find out what their elevator numbers were. Mark also said our office is engaging with a lot of different groups to help find out the number of elevators in the state. Mark also said he feels good on the progress our office is making receiving the elevator numbers.

5. Jared Smith presented the 49% form to the board for review. He explained that there are several factors that go into determining whether the threshold to require the elevator to come up to 2022 ASME 17.1 code has been met.  Jared stated that at the bottom of the form there are eight pieces of documentation listed that must be provided for review.  Jared stated our office reached out to Jarrod Mann for his feedback on the 49% form and that his feedback was much appreciated. Mark Wendland and Jacob Poteete expressed a concern that the 49% form seems confusing. Jared was asked to lead a subcommittee regarding the 49% form. Volunteering to serve on the subcommittee with Jared are Cole Haston, Brent Synder and Todd Stanton.

6. The Elevator Service Maintenance Agreement Exemption Procedure form was presented and 
there was a concern expressed about private information contained on the service agreements being released to the public. The suggestion was made that our office could issue a certificate to avoid making the information on the agreement open to public acquisition.

7. The revised elevator registration form was presented to the board. There was a correction to remove “power driven stairway, moving walkway or stairway lift” from the form. Per the elevator code, only the stairway lift should appear on the application and the rest be removed.

8. Cole Haston raised the topic of board members voting on the variances. He suggested that if a board member’s company has submitted a variance request, they should abstain from that variance request vote.  Mark Engholm agreed. Jarrod Mann also brought up a concern regarding a facility’s bid amount being disclosed on the contract within the variance packet.  Several board members stated that this information should not be disclosed.  Mark Engholm stated that the Fire Marshal’s office had no control over what information was submitted by the facilities, nor could the agency strike any of the information provided.

9. Two variance packets were presented to the elevator advisory board.

a. The first packet was for Coffeyville Community College requesting that the electrical panel be allowed to remain in the same location as the elevator controls.   The board reviewed the packed and approved the request. 

b. The second packet was for Kansas City Community College requesting to be exempt from having additional lighting requirements, pit ladder detection and a flood detection switch.  The board reviewed the packet and determined that the company’s contract was dated 2019, so the variance request was not needed.


Next meeting:  December 9th, 2024, same place, Eisenhower building, 10:00am

Adjournment called by Mark Engholm at 10:58 am, motioned by Jarrod Mann, Seconded by Senator Petersen

Minutes submitted by Jessica Dunderdale
Minutes approved by













ELEVATOR NUMBERS MAR-SEPT 2024 (for bullet #3)
New applications (except the registered elevators)


	Categories
	March
	April
	May
	June
	July
	August
	September
	
	2023-Current
Total

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	
	 

	Contractor-new apps
	1
	0
	1
	0
	0
	1
	0
	
	33

	Inspector-new apps
	2
	0
	1
	0
	0
	1
	0
	
	23

	Mechanics-new apps
	2
	4
	9
	2
	4
	6
	1
	
	288

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Permits-new apps
	22
	27
	23
	47
	8
	19
	11
	
	501

	Install
	13
	21
	15
	28
	0
	0
	0
	
	

	Alter
	9
	6
	8
	19
	8
	19
	11
	
	

	 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Registered elevators 
	  4,453
	      4,896
	      5,321
	      5,521
	      5,749
	      5,854
	           5,980
	
	    

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 





